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edltion " ste charles art

Few if any X&x§ persons living todey will recall the days
building

"when the St, Charles mexeXsg at the corner of Mg n (then called

Mill) and Court streets was the center of many public gatherings,

It seemed an 1{1~fntad structure and collapsed, in part,

in July, 1861, and suffered damage again a few months later

& ter repairs had been starteds It had been buillt ip 1860,

The old hotel stood at the corner where the Security -/
First National bank 1s now situated and, according to an article
in the Visalia Weekly Delta, "was quite an ornament to the town
ad cost some $12,000 or $13,000,"

. The followlng, taken rom the Visalia Weekly Delta
of July 25, 1861, tells of the crash of the structures

"on Saturday last, about 25 minutes to 11 o'clock a.m,, the
.St. Charles bullding, situated on the corner of Bourt and Mill streots
fell with a tremendous crash, The bullding was two stories high,
with fire proof walls, the lower story of which is used for a billard
and bareroom, and the second stoyy was appropriatec for rusic, dance
ing-and other assemblagese The whole was quite an ornement to the
town and cost some §12,000 or $13,000,

"The second story of the bullding, with the exception of the
front wall, wna.antiyely demolished, It appears that from some =
cause the roof of the building was imperfectly put together
and for some time previous had bean‘kncwn by the proprietors
to be sagging in the middle and of consequence spreading out at
the sides, and the whole resting upon the walls, without Platese

more



ad one St, Charles

"Thus settling and apreading, the walls finally yielded
as above ﬁnd the inevitable crash ensued, It was a very
fortunate circumstance that thé:fnlling of the bullding==in as
rueh as it mWs® must sooner or later go downs=sthat it &ook
place wﬂqn but very few persons were about it, Had i1t happened
during a public gathsring'or even late in the evening of the
same day, 1t would hexs most assuredly have been attended with
losa of lifee

"As 1t was, on genﬁleman, Mpr, John G111l who was standing at
the time in company with Dr, Lyons of Woodville, in one of the
front dememg doors of the building, in attemptins to make an-
escape, was caught and buried beneath the falling brick and very
severely, but it 1ls hoped not mortally, injuréd. He now lies
under a doctor's care but is said to be getting along very
w ell,e

"Dr, Lyon is somewhat hurt but not seriously so, The south
wall fell into the residence of E,P. Hart, litorally
demolishing a portion of the house, talking the roof; timepax
timbers, etc., clean beneath the weipght of the falling bricke
Mrs, Hart who was sitting near a front window of the house,
barely escaped with her life, Mrt‘ Henry Hardiﬁg, who w eas
behind the counter at the time of the catastrophe, very
narrowly escaped serious injury from the west end of the building
in his escape from the crumblinp ruins,

e learn that Messrs @am Cohn Brothers, proprietors of the
St. C, srlaa, Intend to reconstruct the bullding as soon as
necessary materials can be procured, Mr, J. Gosland of
Stockton was on the bullders Tho building has been finished and’

occupled about 12 monthae"



‘ad two Bte Charles

&pparently the "necessary materials™ w eore obtained and
reconstruetion was \ntarted but the building again suffered
"injury" according to the following article which appeared
in the Visalia Weekly Delta of Hovembér 21, 186113

"The late heavy rains that injured the building in this
place known as the St, Charles, as the roof was not finlshed,
This seems to be en unfortunate building, though a well=~built
one,

"It was much injured some wmofiths ago, the whole upper
part tumbling down, bﬁcauae Moof was on improperly
and now, bedause it 1s not om, it 1s damaged againe™

#



edition

treatment of indians (another story to come )
White men of Tulare county in the 1860's too the law into
thelr own hands,as they d.id_'at that period in other parts of
the nation in dealing with the red man,
The whites could see but 1ittle good even in the best
of Indians end infractions of the law were foilmd by speedy
punishment and, no doubt in many cases, by the punishment
of many innocent persons, The old saying that "the only good |
Indian 18 a dead Indian" was not knew at the time nop was it
& more saylng--it wag practical "law enforcement” of *;hq time,
Mantxutghtxburnsoeenxesndonadzonzéng  Acts which might have
been condoned if comiitted by a white man were followed by dire
punisiment for an Indian, : )
Follo'ing is n lotter from Cover Diatriet, Kern River,
dated April 19, 1865, and mecskvadxEyekne published by the
Delta of April 23, 1863: |
%Since the severe punishment inflicted on the Indians
et Owens Lpke, a considerable number, disecouraged by the unfavor
eble aspect the war was assuming, paasod over to this section and
quartarod thermselves upon a rancheria of peaceful Indians at
thls place, They had done nothing to merit censure during their
atty; and mife‘nting their previous guilty sonduet only by' an
extraordinary desire for privacy, keeping themselves in out=of=thew=
way places during the dsy » and l.'ﬂl.ilil:ig themselves of the hospital-
ity of the rancheria during the night,

more



ad one treatment of indiens

"This morning at & very early hour, the plece was sure f
rounded by Captein Hanughai;Jl company and the resident chiefs,
Jose Chice and Don Urbane (against whose failr name fhg;braaﬁh of
foul mouthed alander has never dared to shisper a word), 'aro'
brought forth amd eompelled to indicate every strange Indiany and

all who had been gnonn by them to have participnted‘in the war, or
in stealing cattle, numbering between 30 and 40, were shot, i

"This act, the harshness of which at first appeared astounding,
is generally approved by rriondj.;f the Union, who are gradually
waking up to the necessity of energy in war, whether it be
against the seecesh or Indiens; while those clamoring disapproval
a re, as usual, those who do all they ean to embarrass the governw
ment tc #hose fostering protection they owe so mnch._ It is though,
though clear evidence of the face has not transpired, that the
outbreak at Owens river may have been brought about by the same
influences which operated to produce the terrible massacres in
other sections, maiking 1t necessary to send troops from Viselis and
Los Angeles to these areas, thereby affording the guerilla bands
a cliear field for stealing, and the performance of any other of
those nefarious aets which are deemed essential to advance the
interests of the Southern C“nfederacys,"

3 m

Another correspondent, l;ter-dplcribdgg how the Indlans
were surrounded by the soldiers, wrote:

"The captain ordered Jose C'ico to seleet all of the In=
dians for whose good behavior he sould vouch and let them stand
aaid.; which was done, He then requested one of the oldest eiti-
gens, (Mr, larmon), to seleot all he personally lkmew to be peacee

eble citizens of Kern river,



ad two treatment of indians

"The ecaptain then ordered ell children and females out of the
ranks and the remaining bueks, 32 in number, .were march;d out of
sight of the rancheria and tc'>1d to skeosdaddle for 1life, but for

some cause imknown to me, & row commenced and the résult was that
81 of thelr number were k$iyhm killed on the spot and the 32nd
mortally wounded,

"The majority of the Indians killed were a part of tlo0se who
had been engaged in stealing stoek from this vieinity since the outbreak
on the Owens river; the balance were Kern River Indians who were 1n'
the hebit of disappearing whenver the Owens Liver Indians broke out,
and were unable on ‘their return to give any satisfactory accouat of
themselves,"

Sm ’ i
From the V,salta Weekly Delts, March 2, 1862,
"HONEST INDIANg==A native Visalien, lmown here as "Tndien
wodnuday

8 ," eppropriated two bed quilts on Lmmmdmry last--the property
of Dr, Russell, Fe was arrested and talen before Justice Beekham
and sentenced to reseive 20 lashes which were well laid on
the following morming, Sem, - 1ilke a predecessor of white bLlood,
whom we noticed last week, ook adve ntage of hils reputation for

honestye He had heretofore been ccansidered "ome of our nice Indians,"

#



The first building in which prisoners were detalned in Tylare
county apparently was #in the court house, contract for which was let
August 10, 1857, to W.G. Russell, for $1000, The floor of this
structure was of brick in which were placed rings, 1;0 which
were attached cheins and the prisoners secured thereto,

The second county jail was situsted on the first or ground
floor of the court house and had six cells, The contract
for this work was let May 4, 1858, to Redd-Palmer and Company, con=
tract price being {9500 but after a commititee of citizens overe _
powered the sheriff and took James G. MeCrory from this jell and hanged
him from the bridge over Nill Creek on the evening of Decem e 24, 1872,
at the corner of Center and lorth C 6urt streects, e separate or
third bullding was constructed by contract awarded
Miller and Fox, Mey 7, 1873, for $4860 and wae situated just
north of the then eourt house on the present couvt h-ouso block,

The faurth Jaill was situated in the court house, which was
constmcted by Ste hom_
a, 1876, the contrMet priee)being tss 700, The jail was situsted i

on the ﬁ.rat, or ground floor, of this bu.tld.m.g, as in the previous

i Rasl lderl, under & contract dated June

cour.t house, _ ' ]

On October 14, 1889, a jail building wes constructed under
a contract awarded M.J. Byrnes for SE'F,OOO end vas situated on the
present cmmty Jea 1 sito, the building facing west,

On Jenuary 5, 1917, a contract was awarded Trewhitt and S%ﬁ.ol@s
for construction of the present jail building for the sum of $34,900,
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edition expositor ' |

m of the Civil Var period “ tolerant of _
those who sympathiged with the Confederate movement--to an extent.,
However, attacks upon Preaident Lineoln end his imtegrity we re
not eountenanced as the editors of the Ewual Rights Expositor”
diseovered after a few brief months of u:l:ltonco,

The heginning and end of the Equal Rights Expositor
are best outlined in elippings from the Visalia Delta, the

style

history of the newspaper being given in the terse language end newspaper/

Delta
of the duzgxm of the 1860's,

From the Visalia Delta of September 3, 1862

"Messrs Hall and Gerrison have co:menced thp publicgtion of a

weekly paper called the Equal Rights Expositor, with the material

formerly used in printing the Tulare Post--which latter imstitution

has "pegged oute” Politicl.lly, the new paper deelares that "the

South stands justified in the sight of God and the mld," which is

sufficiently explieit on that point, The editors promise to
devote theilr prinelple attention to the advancement of the county,
in whieh fileld of labor, we extend them a ecordial welcome,

Sm
From the Visalia Delta of Mareh 12, 18633
"on Thursday evening last, about 9 o'cloek, the -town was
aroused by the sounding of erashing and smashing, which was soon
- ascertained to proseed fram the building occupied by the printe
ing office of the Eq‘uaf_!. Rights Expositor, A ecrowd at once
rushed toward the spot, but they did not get far, for on each

street and alley intersecting the block were found sentinels v th -

cocked pistols, who informed them that "no eitizens are allowed

- -



ad one expositor _
"In less than half an hour, the establisiment vas a perfect mck;
the type being thrown into the street and the _ltanda s cases
and press smashed to pleces, Their work dome, the rioters de-
parted whence they came, On entering My, Garrison, the junior
par?ner was found (by the rioters) at rowk and a guard was placed over .
him, the the assurance that no harm was intended him,
"The immediate case of the outbreak is said to have
been the pﬁblicat‘:!.on of an article on the "Cnlifom:lg Cossacks,"
eoosobut the starting of it is attributable t0 £heesessses.s
publication of sueh eonpiimentl es the following: '
"iWe wish the people to look this matter boldly in the
faee, so thnt they may lmow when they give their support to the
president, they give a vital steb to the government of their
fathers Xt
"iWe have sald Abreham Lincoln has perjured himlr; and
we have proven it, We now tell thgpa who support this detestable
'nr, to the extent of their support, the participate with Lincoln
in the erime of perjury."!
"'!‘noh has been written m d said about the spirit of
Americans, but that portion of them who sustain the admintstra=
tion are base cowards; they have the hearts only of does and rabbits=-
not of men, ~ They ere an encumbrance and disgrace to any
free eoﬁntr;, and are constitutionally fitted only for serfs to
some despots They would eringe and liek the rod as often as it
smote themy'" 4 . .
Ti1tet our gtl;to-l rights friends 19@1: -around them, and
note the pnsg‘i’vo slaves of the pro.lth, who prate about rebels
and traitors, while they hug their chains with the servility of a
kicked and euffed hound}'™



ad two expoalitor
"These insults had been keenly felt and the result is

the destruetlon of the offices The talk on the street is that the
" Tuolumne Rangers (Coe Ee 2nd Cavalry) took the lead in the matter,
im 3 Mg

"97is but justice to say,kkmk in regard to the late disturbances
in this town, &hat the feeling against the Exposltor did not extend
to liry Garrison, the junior editor, Ajthough & firm, consistent
and positive defender of the rights of seeossian; it seems to be
understood that he was not the author of the low, gross abuse
of the government end citizens which has disfigured its col-

umns®

sn
& subsequent letter in the Delte, signed "soldier" mm% denied
indignantly that the military had had anything whatever to do with

the destruction of the Expositor offices
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editian eity jail \

Visalias was having its "jail trouble” awmky in the early
daye as she is today and then, as now, the need was pointed
out by the Visalia newspaper with the result that, finally
2n on February 8, 1873, mnmmmmm ground
was broken for the structure shown in the adjoining phg:'ao.
Up to the time of the eonstruction of the jail , 1t was
the custem to tie intoxieated persons to trees until they
were deemd_au.f‘ficiantly punished and sobex enough to
be released, : A
The story is best told im artliecles from carly newspapers
and orders of the Tulare coux}t',r board ofJSuperﬂ-.nora:
From the Tulare Times, October 19, 1872:
"Visalia must have a celaboose, The county jaill 1s denied
to the marshal to eonfine persons aonﬂ.ctod of or charged with mise
. demeanors, and he csn do nothing with fhem unless he chains them
to trees, oxpcsed to sun and cold.® :
Order of the Tulare cowumty board of supervisors, November 16, 1872
"Ordered that the trustees of the town of Visalla be, and they
-are hereby granted permission to ereét a sultable town prison on the
north side of im C urt House Square)®
From the Tulare Times, Deecember 21, 18723
"In accordance with out suggestions, the board of trustees have
decided to bulld a town prison, The buillding will be 14 by 24 fee_t( in
size, and 1¢ fee t high, of timber five inches thick, set end on end, and
eompetent arehitects have agreed to sconstrust the building for $1100
in town serip, This is a much needed improvement," :

m ore



ad one city jail ' :

From the Tulare Times, February 8, 1873: [

MCALABOOSEg==Ground has been broken for the new town calaboose,
to be built en Court House Square, north of the court house,"

' dm

The old "ecalaboose" 1is still in use=-1t was aiscovered by
A, Frost, who took the photograph, on the Hyde Ranch Dairy
where 1t now is ut:l_-.umd as & storage place for grain instead
of humen derelictss :

#
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County C,urt House Buildings
by AW, Frost

Frost

The Tulare county court-house at one time was a building
rented at a rate of.$'75 a year, it would sppear from old

5% records, _ :

The first court house of Tulare county was designated
by the act of the legiulatu;- of April 20, 1852, which
provided as follows:

: "The seat of justice shall be at the log cebin on the South
sido of Kaweah creek, near the bridge built by Dr, Thomes Payne
and shall be c-1led Woodsville,"

This bridge was on or near the location of the present
bridge over Kaweah river, near the old Goad place, seven or
eight miles east of Visalia, This served as a court housé
until after the generasl election held September 7, 18853, -h.nmthé
county seat was changed to Visalie,

The second eourt house was a bullding retned from
A, King of Visalla and was situated on the northwest corner
of B,idge and Oak uﬁreetn, at the rate of §7 a year, This lot
was s0ld by the county of Tulare to Thomas Baker, Mareh 7 s 1854,
and in Decdmber of that year, the board of supervisors ordered
that "the court house be meRexed hired for one year from
March 11, 1855, at §76 per anum from C“lone® Baker, to be pald
in town seript, provided that the court housa.b; repalred }
before Jamuary 1, 1855, A.D., by making a fire place, shutters, ete,"

more



ad one Frost ‘
The third court house appears to have been rented from
Russell and Polndexter, né:cording to the following order of
the board of nuperviaorl on February 3, 18573
"Ordered that $60 be paid Russell and Polndoxtoi' for
the reent of their house from !l:vomber 1, 1886, to February$,
185%740esee.mnd it 18 furtﬁer sagreed that the county have the
use of said house for the space of three months .for the
sum of $132," s
The records show that the only property owned by
Russell and Poindexter at that time was Lot 6, Bloek 28, which
i1s the second lot east of Court street on the north side .
of Main street,
The fourth court house was the first eourt house bullt by
the county, the contract for which was let August 10, 1867,
to W.G, Russell for $1000 and was situated on the mresent court
house sites The building was 20 feet by 36 feet, with 12 feet
off for offices, the remainder being for court rom,\ whiech
would make the the ecourt room 20 by 24 feet. The floor
of this bullding was of brick in which were placed rings, 1n whieh
rings chained were attached to which priscners were chained, ‘
This, therefore, was the jail es well as the court room.
: This building being only a temporary afr.tr;. another
building was comstructed in 185 8 for court house end jall,
The fifth court house was contracted for with ;
Redd, Pelmer and Company on the site of the present court house,
On may 4, 1858, The contract price appears to Have been
$95 00 but the upper story was not finished and part of the
first story also was unfinished, The bullding was 40 by
60 feet and, as: above statevd: of two stories, and was

constructed of hard burned brick,



ed two frost _

In the first story also was the jst 1, This building
was completed and accepted FPebruary 8, 1850, At various times
thereafter, the interior of the court house was fi.nilhad.,ﬁ
This bullding served as the county jall until tre taking
out of the jall of some eitizens of Jemes G, MeCrory and the
henging of him from the bridge over Nill groak at the corner of
Center and North strests on Christmas eve, 1872, and the board
of supervisors, on hy 7, 1873, awarded a contract to ;
Mi1ler end Fox for a jail building on the court house grounds,
just north of the eourt house, for $4680,

The sixth court house was built under contract of
Juhe 3, 1876, with A.L. Stephens and Arnold Childersg the
contractors, the contract price being $59,700, and the |

bullding was completed June 9, 1877

_ On August 8, 1907, contraet was awarded W.D. Trewhitt
for the north and south wings of mmnng this building,
which is the presemt court house, for $40 ,1000_.. the north wingf
being of fire=proof construction. ~These wings were
completed M-y 23, 1908,

The contract for the new annex on the west side of the
0ld court house vas let to Prank J. Reilly of San Franciseo
om July 12, 1934, for $125,721, m d was ﬁanple-t;o& about
July 1, 1935¢

end frost





